Tiffany Glass and Decorating Company
Iridescent glass vase. 1896-1900
4 3/16 inches tall

1972/2.209

The Havemeyer
Tiffany Collection




Tiffany Glass and Decorating Company
Swan-necked Vase, 1896-1900
16 15/16 inches tall

1972/2.223

For the past decade the Havemeyer Tiffany Collection has been on extended loan to
the Museum of Art from the University of Michigan School of Art and College of
Architecture and Urban Planning. The Museum is honored to have been able to work
with our colleagues to arrange for the preservation and restoration of this University
treasure and we are delighted now to be able to return these magnificent objects to
public exhibition where they can once again be a source of delight and a focus for
study.

This publication and the exhibition which it accompanies were made possible in
part by a grant from the National Endowment for the Arts, a Federal Agency. The
Herrick Foundation, the Friends of the Museum, and a special gift from Linda and
Todd Herrick provided crucial additional support. The Museum acknowledges with
pleasure and gratitude the generous and enlightened support of these donors.




Portion of balustrade from third floor stair-
well from the H.O. Havemeyer House.,
New York: gilt bronze, opalescent glass:
32 x 42 inches: 1986.1146.6

Louis Comfort Tiffany was born in New York City on February 18, 1848, the eldest
son of Charles L. and Harriet Tiffany. Nine years before, Louis’s father had estab-
lished a store selling stationery and other fancy goods. Gradually the firm came to
specialize in precious stones and silver, and considerable success followed. With the
retirement of Charles’s partners, the firm became known as Tiffany and Company.

Not surprisingly, Louis Tiffany enjoyed a privileged childhood. He attended a
succession of private schools, including the Eagleswood Military Academy in New
Jersey where he studied with the famous landscape painter George Inness. When he
was seventeen Louis sailed for Europe. Upon his return 1o the States the following
vear he decided to become an artist. In the fall of 1866 Tiffany enrolled at the
National Academy of Design in New York. Two years later he returned to Paris to
enter the atelier of the academic artist Leon Bailly. While in Paris Tiffany met the
painter Samuel Colman (1832-1920), with whom he would one day collaborate on the
decoration of the Havemeyer House. Together the two artists travelled to North Africa.
where they were greatly struck by the light, color, and pattern they encountered.

Tiffany worked largely as a painter during the 1870s, exhibiting at the National
Academy, the Century Association, and elsewhere. But by the middle of the decade
Louis had become friendly with Edward C. Moore, the leading silver designer for
Tiffany and Company. It was Moore who encouraged the voung artist 1o think about
the expressive possibilities of the decorative arts and who introduced him 1o the influ-
ential Parisian dealer Samuel Bing.

[n 1879 Tiffany formed his first company, Louis C. Tiffany and Associated
Artists. His partners in this venture were Samuel Colman, Candace Wheeler, and
Lockwood de Forest. Tiffanys many social connections quickly led to a series of
important commissions from Cornelius Vanderhilt 11, Ogden Goelet, and the White
House, where Tiffany redecorated the state rooms for President Chester Arthur.

The firm was busy and successful. but in 1883 the increasingly divergent inter-
ests of the partners led to the friendly dissolution of the Associated Artists. Shortly
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alterward. with the help of architect Stanford White, Tiftany desianed for iniself and
s family o Targe mansion at the cormer of Madison Avenue and 72nd Street. For his
own two-story studio/Zapartiment at the top of the house Tilfany created an exotic and
theatrical world of rich color. dramatic space. and evocative light, This extracrdinar
rooin. which one critic deseribed as “like a bit from the palace of an Indian Rajah.”
had as s centerpicce a free standing. four-sided fireplace. Elsewhere in the room
every imaginable type ol sumpluous material and decorative stvle were combined and
biended into 1 hold and original. vel unilied. aesthetic whole, Tiffanys apartiment

quicklyv became the talk of New York, gaining him considerable fame and nol

COMIESS10S,

In the same vears Tilfamy also directed a flourishing business providing <tained

e

alass windows for churches: civie buildings. and homes. A major exhibition for 1

1693 Chicago World's Columbian Exposition further sccured his American elientel

and the active promotion of the firm’s work in Europe by Samuel Bine cained Tiflan
an miternational reputation. In 1897 Louis was issued a patent for his Faveile glas
terme deriving from the Old English word fabrile. meaning handmade, The widespread
success of this vichly colored and iridescent glass Ted to further expansion inio pot
terve metahworke enamel. and particularly the Tighting fistares for which he i< rodin
well known.

Fiffany's father died in 1902 and Louis became Vice President and At Divecto;
of Tiffany and Company. In the same vear he once again reorganized his own husines
under the name of Tiffany Studios and invested a portion of hus mheritance i o new
summer home on Long Island. Laurehon Hall became famons i <ubseguent vears a-
the site of a number of Tavish féres and as the home of the Touis Combort Tiffany
Foundation. organized 1o aid voung artist=. By 1918 Tiffany had effectively vetived

from active participation in the allairs of his firme He devoted Bis Later vears (o painl

g and died m New York on January 17,1933,




Firescreen from entrance hall of H.O.
Havemeyer House, New York: gilt metal and
opalescent glass; 40 x 44 inches:

1986.146.10
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Henry O. Havemeyer (1847-1907) is today best remembered for the astonishing col-
lection of nearly 2000 works of art bequeathed by his widow, Louisine Waldron
Havemeyer (1855-1929), to the Metropolitan Museum of Art. This gift included mag-
nificent old master pictures by El Greco, Goya, and Rembrandt and a particularly
important group of nineteenth-century and Impressionist pictures by Daumier,
Courbet, Manet, Cassatl, Degas, Monel, and others. The collection also included
prints and drawings, Asian Art, and Favrile glass by Louis Comfort Tiffany.

Henry Havemeyer's grandfather emigrated from Germany to the United States in
1802. In subsequent years the family built up a large and prosperous sugar refining
business centered in a huge factory on the Brooklyn waterfront. With great determina-
tion and a natural flair for business, Henry took a lead in running the financial side of
the family enterprises. By 1887 he had parlayed the refinery into the cornerstone of a
vast trust which virtually controlled the processing of sugar in this country and gener-
ated enormous profits. In his own day Havemeyer was both respected and reviled as
the “Sugar King.”

In addition to his flair for business, Havemever had early on developed an inter-
est in art and music. Around 1875 he made the acquaintance of the painter Samuel
Colman and together they visited the Philadelphia Centennial Exhibition. It was
Colman who encouraged Havemeyer to start collecting and may very well have intro-
duced him to Louis Comfort Tiffany.

Henry Havemeyer married Louisine Waldron Elder in 1883. This event sig-
nalled a major expansion in the familys collecting and patronage. Mrs. Havemeyer
had lived in Paris where, in the company of her childhood friend Mary Cassatt, she
developed a passionate interest in the work of her fellow expatriate, Whistler, and in
the artists of the Impressionist circle.

By 1888 the Havemeyer collection had outgrown the family home on Fast 36th
Streel. To remedy this situalion a site on the corner of Fifth Avenue and East 66th
Street was acquired and the architect Charles Haight engaged. In contrast to the pre-
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Portion of a lighting fixture, possibly from the
entrance hall, H.O. Havemeyer House, New
York; silver gilt bronze, opaline glass; 30
inches in diameter; 1986.146.5

tentious chateaux or palazzi built by other magnates, the facade of the large house at
1 East 66th Street was solid, sober, and understated.

The same could not be said for the interiors. From the start it was a foregone
conclusion that the inside of the Havemeyers’ new home would be designed by
Tiffany and Colman. Not only were both individuals by this time close family friends,
but Mrs. Havemeyer had also on a number of occasions visited Tiffany’s lavish studio
on 72nd Street. Fascinated, she was eager 1o have a similarly “artistic” interior for
her own home. The Havemeyers soon nunbered among Tiffany’s most enthusiastic
clients.

Although the structure of the house was complete by the spring of 1890, it took
Tiffany and Colman an additional two years and over $250,000 to complete the interi-
ors. The results were a virtuosic performance. Great leaps of imagination united every
sort of color, pattern, and texture into a beautiful and effective setting for the
Havemeyers’ collection.

Entering {rom the street visitors passed through a remarkable set of doors inlo @
sumptuous hall paved with over a million Hispano-Moresque tiles. The walls were
covered with mosaic panels and were surmounted by a mosaic frieze of palmettes
The centerpiece of the room was the fireplace, crowned by a great mosaic peacock
and fronted by a gilt metal and opalescent glass firescreen fashioned to resemble .
giant piece of jewelry. Samuel Bing aptly described the room as having “an air ¢
gleaming opulence.”

Author Aline Saarinen provides an evocative description of other rooms in th
house:

...the Byzantine chapels of Ravenna inspired “our white mosaic hall and the ten pilla
at the entrance of our gallery” ___the staircase derived from the one in the Doge
Palace ... the walls of the music room were covered with Chinese embroideries ... G
the blue and gold Chinese Tugs stood special, richly carved furniture rubbed with go
leaf and varnish to look like the iory inro that inspired it. The furniture and the woo.
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tentious chateaux or palazzi built by other magnates, the facade of the large house at
1 Easl 66th Street was solid, sober, and understated.

The same could not be said for the interiors. From the start it was a foregone
conclusion that the inside of the Havemeyers’ new home would be designed by
Tiffany and Colman. Not only were both individuals by this time close family friends,
but Mrs. Havemeyer had also on a number of occasions visited Tiffany’s lavish studio
on 72nd Street. Fascinated, she was eager to have a similarly “artistic” interior for
her own home. The Havemeyers soon numbered among Tiffany’s most enthusiastic
clients.

Although the structure of the house was complete by the spring of 1890, it took
Tiffany and Colman an additional two years and over $250,000 to complete the interi-
ors. The results were a virtuosic performance. Great leaps of imagination united every
sort of color, pattern, and texture into a beautiful and effective setting for the
Havemeyers’ collection.

Entering from the street visitors passed through a remarkable set of doors into a
sumptuous hall paved with over a million Hispano-Moresque tiles. The walls were
covered with mosaic panels and were surmounted by a mosaic frieze of palmettes.
The centerpiece of the room was the fireplace, crowned by a great mosaic peacock
and fronted by a gilt metal and opalescent glass firescreen fashioned to resemble a
giant piece of jewelry. Samuel Bing aptly described the room as having “an air of
gleaming opulence.”

Author Aline Saarinen provides an evocative description of other rooms in the
house:

...the Byzantine chapels of Ravenna inspired “our white mosaic hall and the ten pillars
at the entrance of our gallery” ...the staircase derived from the one in the Doge’s
Palace ... the walls of the music room were covered with Chinese embroideries ... On
the blue and gold Chinese rugs stood special, richly carved furniture rubbed with gold
leaf and varnish to look like the ivory inro that inspired it. The furniture and the wood-




Elements from a mosaic frieze, entrance hall
of the H.O. Havemeyer House, New York;
glass; each 34 x 22 inches; 1986.146.8a&b

work in the library [also called the “Rembrandt Room” after the eight works by that
master which hung there] were based on Viking designs and Celtic motifs ... The
library ceiling was a sensation ... a mosaic design of multicolor silks, outlined with
heavy braid and framed with carved gold moldings...

The two-story upstairs gallery ... became a topic of ... conversation by virtue of its
‘golden’ or flying’ staircase. A narrow balcony with an alcove ran around the second
story of the picture gallery. The spectacular staircase was suspended, like a necklace,
from one side of the balcony to the other. A curved piece of cast iron formed the spine to
which, without intermediate supports, the stair treads were attached. The sides of this
astonishing construction, as well as the balcony railings, were a spider web of gold fili-
gree dotted with small crystal balls. The concept of a construction in space was revolu-
tionary indeed for 1890 and its daring was dramatized by a crystal fringe on the center
landing which tinkled from the slight motion when the staircase was used. (from
Saarinen, pp. 155-7, and Weitzenhoffer, pp. 71 and 77)

Samuel Bing captured the overall effect of the rooms:

. the ingenious eclecticism responsible for these interiors has so skillfully combined
disparate elements, integrating them so artfully, that we are left with an impression of
perfect harmony ... a visitor is overcome, upon entering, with a subdued atmosphere of
peace and quiet. (Bing, 130)

The Havemeyers greatly enjoyed these rooms, entertaining in them regularly and
proudly showing visitors from around the world their home and collection. A number
of alterations were made over the years, including the addition of a foundation in the
entrance hall and the building of a new gallery wing, but the house remained substan-
tially as Tiffany designed it right up to Louisine Havemeyer’s death in 1929. Within a
year of this event, however, the interiors were broken up and sold and the house itself

demolished.




Air return grill from entrance hall of the H.O.
Havemeyer House, New York; gilt metal and
opalescent glass; 26 x 33 inches; 1986.146.7

With the death of Louisine Havemeyer in January of 1929 her family carried out her
wish that the most prized works in her collection be given to the Metropolitan
Museum of Art. Other art works passed to family members or were sold at auction by
the Anderson Galleries on April 10, 1930. The contents of the house on Fast 66th
Street were similarly dispersed at auction on April 21-22, 1930.

The Dean of the College of Architecture at the University of Michigan, Kmil
Lorch (1870-1963), was present at the Havemeyer sale. Over a period of years Lorch
had acquired architectural fragments by Louis Sullivan, George Elmslie, G.B. Post,
and others. The College collection eventually also included casts of architectural
ornaments, a group of drawings and watercolors, Japanese prints and ceramics, and
Cypriol antiquities. Using funds provided by newspaper magnate George Booth,
Lorch was now able to acquire a particularly choice group of objects for the
Umversny Altogether he purchased forty lots (nearly 400 pieces) at a cost of $2268.
Included in this group was a large assortment of pottery, enamels, tiles, glassware,
wood carvings, metalwork, [‘gyplldn glass, lacquer, and other decorative objects.
Twenty-five lots (with a purchase price of $1325) were composed of Tiffany materials:
interior elements from the Havemeyer house along with twenty-seven pieces of
Favrile glass.

Dean Lorch’s purchases at the Havemeyer sale were part of a major effort to
assemble a teaching collection of artworks, casts, and architectural fragments. In
selecting works for the collection, the Dean sought to illustrate for students a wide
range of forms, colors, and textures. He was attracted by objects of “exquisite work-
manship” and “marked aesthetic appeal.” Lorch believed strongly in the importance
of learning “not through pictures but through intimate association with originals.”
(Lorch, pp. 2-4)

The Havemeyer Tiffany collection was initially a source of pride for the
University. After their acquisition a selection of works was displayed in special glass
cases on the first floor of the architecture building, now Lorch Hall on Tappan Street.




Bow window, H.O. Havemeyer House,
New York; stained glass and lead;
25 3/4 x 44 1/2 inches; 1986.146.2

Later, larger objects were installed in faculty offices around the building. Some were
placed in storage. In the late 1930s, as Tiffany’s work went out of fashion under the
growing influence of modernism, more and more of the collection was consigned to
closets or storerooms. Many pieces simply disappeared. The collection was further
diminished in 1947 when a group of Tiffany objects was sold to New York dealer
Victor Spark.

In 1958 the tide began to turn when a group of smaller glass objects was trans-
ferred to the Museum of Art for safekeeping. In 1983 Museum Director Evan Maurer
worked with School of Art Dean George Bayliss to transfer custody of the remaining
works to the Museum. With the support of the National Endowment for the Arts a
major conservation effort was then mounted to restore the collection to exhibitable
condition. This five-year effort was largely complete by 1988. The Museum is proud
to be able to return these masterpieces of American decorative art to public exhibi-
tion exactly one-hundred years after they were first installed in the Havemeyer
House.

William J. Hennessey
Director

The University of Michigan
Museum of Art




